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. GENERAL INFORMATION:

1. General information

- Trading name : PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- Business Registration Certificate No. : 0102306389

- Charter capital : 373.500.000.000 Vietnam Dong

- Owner's capital : 230.654.035.138 Vietnam Dong

- Address : No. 01 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward,
Cau Giay District, Hanoi

- Telephone : 024.62732659 Email: contact@pv2.com.vn

- Website J WWw.pv2.com.vn

- Securities code :PV2

ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
2007:
PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company (PV2) was founded on June 29, 2007, with an initial

charter capital of 150 billion VND, contributed by five founding members: PetroViethnam
Insurance Corporation, Tan Vien Petroleum JSC, PetroVietham Finance Company, Song Da
Urban and Industrial Development Investment JSC, and Vietnam International Commercial Joint

Stock Bank.

2008:
Despite the 2008 economic crisis challenges, the company achieved revenue of VND 68.6
billion, an after-tax profit of VND 7.618 billion, and a dividend payout ratio of 3.5%. Furthermore,

in the same year, PV2 increased its charter capital to VND 182.5 billion.

2010:
In 2010, PV2 increased its charter capital to VND 373.5 bhillion to fund investments and listed its
shares on the Hanoi Stock Exchange, with the stock symbol PV2.


mailto:contact@pv2.com.vn
http://www.pv2.com.vn/

Business Sectors and Locations:

Business Sectors:

Real Estate Investment

Financial Investment

Business Location: Hanoi

. Information about governance model, business organization and managerial apparatus

Governance model: General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), Board of Directors (BOD), CEO

and Audit Committee under the Board of Directors.

Organizational Structure

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors
Audit Committee
CEO
Accounting Business Project Management Representative Branch in
Office Department Department Board for Employees' office in HCM Dong Nai
Housing at DQ Refinery

Subsidiary and associate companies:

Long Hoi Invest
Company Limited

Capital Gate
Company Limited

Aladdin Technology Joint Stock Company:

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi, Vietnam

Business Sectors: Online gaming; E-commerce; Software development; Travel agency;

Advertising services; Insurance agency...

Charter capital: 1,000,000,000 VND

PV2’s ownership: 49%




Long Hoi Invest Company Limited:

e Address: F212 Vo Thi Sau, Thong Nhat Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province
e Primary business lines: Real estate...

e Actual contributed capital: 5,090,000,000 VND

e PV2’s ownership: 100%

Capital Gate Company Limited:

e Address: No. 06, Lane 5/106, Tran Binh Street, Mai Dich Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi,

Vietnam
e Primary business lines: Real estate...
e Actual contributed capital: 0 VND
e PV2's ownership: 100%

Smart Automation Management Joint Stock Company:

o Address: No. 23, Lane 34/187, Vinh Tuy Street, Vinh Tuy Ward, Hai Ba Trung District,

Hanoi, Vietnam.
e Primary business lines: Warehousing and storage
e Charter capital: 9,900,000,000 VND

e Actual contributed capital: 2,500,000,000 VND

. Development orientations:

The company's strategic priorities include:
Focus on carrying out projects in which the Company acts as the primary investor.

Carry out divestment, recover funds from current investments and debts/receivables, while

simultaneously identify and invest in potential project.

Engage in profitable business and services activities, in conjunction with financial investments to

ensure a stable, secured and efficient cash flow.

Exercise strict cost control and efficient cost management to maximize operational performance

and optimize shareholder returns.

. COMPANY OPERATIONS IN 2024

Overview

In 2024, PV2 operated in a recovering Vietham economic environment, characterized by
controlled inflation, record export growth, and increasing foreign investment. Vietham's GDP
increased by 7.09%, making it a strong performer in the region. The country also actively
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pursued reforms, improved its institutions, adopted digital technologies, and developed tourism.
However, challenges such as global economic instability, inflation risks, reliance on export
activities and fluctuations in the stock and real estate markets significantly influenced business

outcomes, posing challenges to the participants
The Board of Management of PV2 has implemented the following solutions:

a. Optimizing Business and investment activities:

- Focus on core projects: PV2 focused on long term solutions optimizing all of its resources,
prioritized key investment projects in which the company serves as the primary investor,
ensuring optimal resource allocation and capital utilization.

- The company divested from underperforming investments and redirected funds to potential
projects on the basis of ensuring both capital efficiency and preservation for the long run.

- Flexible securities management: PV2 implemented a dynamic approach to securities trading,
restructured the portfolio to align with market trends, executed timely trades to enable good

returns while following risk management principles.

b. Enhancing corporate governance: Transparency and Accountability:

PV2 adhered strictly to regulatory requirements for business, financial and other information

disclosure, fostering trust among shareholders and stakeholders.

c. Strengthening financial management and debts/receivables recovery:

- Cost control: The Company continued to implement rigorous cost control measures on operating

expenses and optimized the efficient allocation of financial resources.

- Debts/receivables recovery: The Company intensified debts/receivables recovery efforts for
outstanding amounts, reducing the risk of bad debts and stabilizing cash flows for business

operations

d. Business performance results in 2024 were as follows:

Unit: million VND

No. Indicators Plan 2024 Actual 2024 % Achieved
1 | Revenue 181,253 162,876 89.86%
- From real estate business activities 170,000 150,000 88.24%
- From financial activities 11,253 12,876 114.42%
2 | Expenses 194,692 177,086 90.96%
3 | Profit before tax (13,439) (14,210)




2. Organization and Human resource

a. List of the Board of Management
e  Mr. Vi Xuan Han - Member of the BOD & CEO
- Gender: Male
- Date of birth: March 7, 1977
- Nationality: Viethamese
- Ethnicity: The Kinh
- Professional qualification: Construction Engineer
- Position: Member of the BOD & CEO
- Number of shares owned: 10,000

- Number of shares owned by affiliated persons: 10,0000
e Ms. Lé Thi Hwvong — Chief Accountant

- Gender: Female

- Date of Birth: August 20, 1980

- Nationality: Vietnamese

- Ethnicity: The Kinh

- Professional qualification: Bachelor of Accounting

- Position: Chief Accountant

- Number of shares owned: 0

- Number of shares owned by affiliated persons: 0

b. Human resources

The company fully complies with the state policies and regulations for employees while
coordinating with the labor union to implement additional welfare benefits such as benefits for
female employees, benefits for employees' children, allowances, or other forms of care for

employees' families.
3. Investment activities and project implementation

a. Residential Project in Long Tan and Phu Hoi, Nhon Trach — Dong Nai Province

In 2024, the Company successfully completed all necessary legal procedures to qualify the
project for ownership transfer. On December 30, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the
transfer of the entire residential project located in Long Tan and Phu Hoi communes, Nhon Trach
district, Dong Nai province, to Tay Tay Nam Investment Joint Stock Company. Currently, the
Company is coordinating with Tay Tay Nam Investment Joint Stock Company and relevant

authorities in Dong Nai province to finalize the transfer procedures.

b. Housing Project for Employees of Dung Quat Oil Refinery, Quang Ngai Province

During the implementation of this project, PV2 consistently complied with all legal regulations

and directives issued by the Provincial People's Committee and relevant authorities of Quang



Ngai province. However, due to complexities in the investor selection process under the Law on
Investment and challenges related to land use regulations under the Land Law, the progress of
the Housing Project for Employees of Dung Quat Oil Refinery has been significantly delayed.
The timeline and resolution remain unclear. As a result, the Company has decided to temporarily
suspend the project until further instructions are provided by the Provincial People's Committee

and relevant authorities.

c. PV2 holds equity stakes in several joint ventures and associated companies involved in various
projects. For these indirectly managed projects, PV2 maintains strict oversight, monitors
progress closely, and encourages partners to expedite investment timelines. At the same time,
the Company is actively pursuing potential buyers to transfer these projects, aiming to recover its
invested capital.

d. Financial Investment Activities: Despite significant volatility and unpredictability in the financial
markets, the Company's financial investment activities performed well in 2024. Revenue from
these activities exceeded the annual plan by 14.42%.

4. Financial situation

a. Financial situation: Unit: VND
Indicators Year 2023 Year 2024 % change
Total asset 400,373,597,384  258,802,788,744 (35.36%)
Net revenue 0 150,000,000,000
Profit from business activities (4,957,028,905) (17,712,843,613)

Other profits (1,463,228) 0
Profit before tax 8,563,443,608 (14,209,750,154) (265.94%)
Profit after tax 8,563,443,608 (14,209,750,154) (265.94%)

b. Major financial indicators

Indicators 2023 2024

1. Solvency ratio

- Current ratio: Short term Asset/Short term debt 0.526 4.176
- Quick ratio: (Short term Asset — Inventories)/Short term Debt 0.518 4.133

2. Capital structure ratio

- Debt/Total Assets ratio 0.389 0.109

- Debt/Owner's Equity ratio 0.636 0.122

3. Operational Efficiency Ratios




- Cost of goods sold/Average inventory 4.068 137.646
- Net revenue/ Average Total Assets 0.0 0.580
4. Profitability

- Profit after tax/ Net revenue ratio (0.095)
- Profit after tax/ Owner's Equity 0.035 (0.062)
- Profit after tax/ Total assetsratio 0.021 (0.055)
- Profit from business activities/ Net revenue ratio 0 (0.118)

5. Shareholders structure, changes in the owner's equity

a. Shares:

Total number of shares: 37,350,000

Types of shares: Common shares

Number of freely transferable shares: 36,868,800

Treasury stocks: 481,200

b. Shareholders structure (as per the list finalized on April 24, 2024)

Number Shareholders structure
Number of Ownership of
No. Category )
Shares ratio Sharehold | organization Individual
ers
1 | Major Shareholders (holding 5% or more of share capital)
- Domestic 20,762,800 55.59% 4 0 4
- Foreign
2 | Treasury shares 481,200 1.29% 1 1 0
3 | Other Shareholders 16,106,000 43.12% 2,067 8 2,059
- Domestic 16,106,000 42.93% 2,055 4 2,051
- Foreign 70,300 0.19% 12 4 8
TOTAL 37,350,000 100.00% 2,072 9 2,063
- Domestic 37,350,000 99.79% 2,421 5 2,416
- Foreign 76,400 0.21% 13 9 4

c. Changes in the owner's equity:

14,209,750,154.

d. Transaction of treasury stocks:

Number of treasury shares: 481,200

Treasury stock transactions: The Company conducted no transactions in 2024.

e. Other securities: None

In 2024, the Company decreased owners' equity by VND




REPORTS AND ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

1. The 2024 Performance Overview

The year 2024 posed significant challenges to PV2 due to the volatility of the global economy
and specific difficulties in Vietham real estate market. Despite implementing various strategic
measures, the Company’s business results fell short of expectations, achieving only 89.86% of

the revenue target and incurring a loss of VND 14.21 billion.

a. Key factors affecting business performance

Delays in project transfers: The inability to complete the transfer of the residential project in Long
Tan and Phu Hoi, Nhon Trach, Dong Nai, had a substantial negative impact on revenue and
profitability from real estate operations. This delay resulted in a loss of VND 17.71 billion for the
project.

Effective financial activities: The company's financial investment activities continued to yield
positive outcomes, exceeding the target by 14.42%, demonstrating PV2's flexibility and

adaptability in an unstable financial environment.

b. Corporate governance evaluation

Transparency and accountability: PV2 upheld transparency by ensuring compliance with
regulatory requirements for information disclosure and financial reporting, fostering trust among

stakeholders.

Risk management: PV2 actively identified and assessed potential risks, with a focus on real

estate projects and financial investment activities, to minimize adverse impacts.

Strategic adjustments and improvements: The BOD and CEO took decisive action to evaluate
market challenges and implement strategic adjustments aimed at improving performance and

ensuring financial resilience.
Financial situation:
Assets:

As of December 31, 2024, the Company's total assets amounted to VND 258,802,788,744,
reflecting a 35.35% decrease from the asset value recorded on December 31, 2023. The cost of
unfinished basic construction within this total was VND 35,129,248,244, accounting for 13.57%.

Liabilities:

Liabilities debt situation and significant changes: As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no
overdue liabilities that were unpayable. The ratio of Liabilities to Total Assets accounted for only
10.9% of Total Assets. The total liabilities value was VND 28,225,196,268, of which VND

1,292,852,516 represented advance payments from buyers.



Analysis of overdue liabilities, impact of exchange rate differences on business results, and
impact of interest rate differences: The Company had no overdue liabilities or significant

exposure to exchange rate fluctuations.
Business Plan for 2025

On the basis of opportunity and risk assessment for the year of 2025, PV2’s business plan is as

follow:

. Optimize operational efficiency and risk control:

Complete the transfer of the residential area project in Long Tan and Phu Hoi, Nhon Trach, Dong

Nai to free up capital for reinvestment in new projects.
Strengthen risk management capabilities in real estate and financial investment activities.

Enhance cost management’s efficiency, maintain a stable cash flow to support operational

needs.

. Improve investment activities’ efficiency:

Improve the efficiency of securities trading activities by restructuring the investment portfolio and

adopting a flexible trading strategy to maximize returns while managing risks effectively.

Fully divest from underperforming investments and identify new opportunities that align with

long-term strategies and ensure capital safety.
Diversify the portfolio, reduce risk concentration

Recruit and train high-quality personnel, expand partner network to support research and

evaluation of new investment opportunities.

. Enhance corporate governance:

Ensuretimely and accurate disclosure of financial and operational information to stakeholders.

Enhance strategic planning capabilities, risk management proficiency, and adaptation of new

technology through targeted training and development programs for management and staff.
Strengthen and improve the internal governance system for better operational efficiency.

Review and update internal policies to ensure transparency, fairness and to align with evolving

corporate governance standards and legal requirements.

ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOD OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATION

Assessments of the BOD of the company’s operation

Despite business performance falling short of expectations, the BOD acknowledged that the
CEO and other managers adhered to the Board's directives in 2024 operational activities. The

target shortfall was primarily due to PV2's inability to finalize the ownership transfer for the
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Residential Area project in Long Tan and Phu Hoi, Nhon Trach - Dong Nai, which was projected

to contribute to over 90% of PV2's revenue. Other business activities were executed effectively.
2. Assessments of the BOD of the CEO and other managers’ performance

In 2024, the BOD effectively and comprehensively supervised the CEO and other managers to
ensure the Company's operations adhered to legal requirements, the Company Charter, and the
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. This supervision was conducted through the

following means:

Supervision via reports and meetings:

- The Board mandated regular reports from the CEO and other managers on business

performance, financial status, project progress, and emerging issues.

- During both regular and extraordinary meetings, the Board directly received reports, questioned
and discussed with the CEO and other managers to evaluate performance and provide timely
guidance.

Supervision via reqular communication:

Beyond formal meetings, the BOD, the CEO and other managers maintained consistent
communication through direct channels and telephone, ensuring continuous information updates

and prompt resolution of issues.

Supervision of resolution and requlation implementation:

- The BOD closely monitored the implementation of its resolutions and regulations, ensuring their

effectiveness and compliance.

- The Board of Directors assessed that the CEO and other managers operated within the defined
delegation of authority between the Board and the CEO and successfully fulfilled their

management and operational responsibilities in 2024.
3. BOD’s operational plan for 2025

The BOD will prioritize enhancing business performance and further refining the corporate

governance system to ensure operational efficiency. Key areas of focus include:

a. Enhancing business performance:

- Direct the Board of Management to concentrate on achieving the 2025 business plan’s targets.
Strengthen risk management, particularly financial risks, ensure stable cash flow, and improve

the effectiveness of debt/receivables collection and lawsuits’ enforcement.

- Review and divest from underperforming investments. Actively seek and capitalize on new

investment opportunities, ensuring capital efficiency and safety.

b. Refining the corporate governance system:

10



with current legislation and corporate governance’s best practices.

Review, revise, and improve the company's internal regulations and rules, ensuring compliance

- Ensure transparency and accountability in the operations of the BOD, CEO and other managers.

- Enhance the capabilities of the management team, ensuring they possess the necessary skills

and gualities to meet the company's objectives.

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. The Board of Directors (BOD)

a. Information about the members of the BOD:

NUMBER OF SHARES ~ OWNERSHIP
NO. FULL NAME POSITION
Chairman & Legal
1 Mr. Nguyen Phuc Anh _ 9,145,000 24.48%
Representative
2 Mr. Nguyen Anh Tuan Non-executive member 2,110,200 5.65%
3 Mr. Lam Nhat Son Non-executive member 0 0%
Executive member; CEO &
4 Mr. Vu Xuan Han ] 10,000 0.02%
Legal Representative
5 Mr. Phan Trinh Quoc Kien Independent member 0 0%
b. Meetings of the BOD:
NUMBER OF ATTENDED
NO. FULL NAME POSITION
MEETINGS ATTENDED RATIO
Chairman & Legal
1 Mr. Nguyen Phuc Anh _ 6 100%
Representative
2 Mr. Nguyen Anh Tuan Non-executive member 6 100%
3 Mr. Lam Nhat Son Non-executive member 6 100%
Executive member; CEO &
4 Mr. Vu Xuan Han ) 100%
Legal Representative
5 Mr. Phan Trinh Quoc Kien Independent member 6 100%
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c. Resolutions/Decisions of the BOD (Year 2024)

No.

Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Content

Approval
rate

01/2024/NQ-
HDQT

03/04/2024

Approval of the extension of the date to hold
the 2024 Annual GMS according to Clause 2
Article 139 of the Law of Enterprises:

- Record date for shareholders’ rights: April
24, 2024.

- Date of the Annual GMS: May 18, 2024.

100%

02/2024/NQ
- HBQT

25/04/2024

- Approval of the Q1 2024 Business

Performance Reportand the Q2 2024

Business Plan;

- Approval of the agenda and documents for
submission to the 2024 Annual GMS.

100%

100%

03/2024/NQ
- HDBQT

19/07/2024

- Approval of the Business Performance
Report for the first 6 months of 2024 and
the Business Plan for the last 6 months of
2024;

- Approval the selection of Nhan Tam Viet
Auditing Co., Ltd. as the auditor for PV2's

2024 financial statements.

- Approval of the Performance Bonus Policy

for securities investment activities.

100%

100%

100%

04/2024/NQ
- HDPQT

25/10/2024

- Approval of the Business Performance
Report for the first 9 months of 2024 and
the Business Plan for the last 3 months of
2024,

100%

05/2024/NQ
— HPQT

12/12/2024

- Approval of the capital contribution to
establish Smart Automation Management

Joint Stock Company;

- Approval of the appointment of the

representative for PV2's contributed capital

100%

100%
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in Smart Automation Management Joint

Stock Company.

- Approval of the transferring ownership of 100%
Residential project in Long Tan and Phu Hoi
communes, Nhon Trach district, Dong Nai

province to Tay Tay Nam Joint Stock

06/2024/NQ _
6 31/12/2024 | Company;
— HDPQT

- Approval of the documents, transfer plan,
implementation method, transfer area, 100%
transfer value, and other specific details
related to the transfer of this project.

2. Information about members of the Audit Committee:

NUMBER OF OWNERSHIP
NO. MEMBERS OF BOD POSITION
SHARES OWNED PERCENTAGES
1 Mr. Phan Trinh Quoc Kien Chairman 0 0%
2 Mr. Lam Nhat Son Member 0 0%
3. Transactions, remunerations and benefits of the BOD
a. Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits 2024:
NO. POSITION NUMBER TOTAL (VND)
1 Chairman & Legal Representative 01 319.000.000
Executive member of the BOD; CEO & Legal
2 _ 01 696.500.000
Representative
3 Non-executive member of the BOD 01 66.000.000

b. Share transactions by internal shareholders: None

c. Contracts or transactions with internal shareholders: None
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VI. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

1. Auditor’s opinions:

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the financial position at 31 December 2024 as well as the business result and the
cash flows for the fiscal year ended on the same date of PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company,
all in conformity with the Viethamese Accounting Standards and accounting system as well as
other legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

2. Audited financial statements:

The 2024 financial statements were audited by Nhan Tam Viet Auditing Co., Ltd. in accordance
with legal regulations on accounting and the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and accounting

system (financial statements are as attached).

The 2024 audited financial statements are available at the following link:
https://pv2.com.vn/?p=3685.

Hanoi, April 17, 2025
W
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

REPORT OF THE GENERAL DIRECTOR

4
The General Director of PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company presents his report together with the ?
audited financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2024. /
Business highlights h\
PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company, formerly known as PVI Investment and Development Joint Szi
Stock Company, was established under Business Registration Certificate No. 0102306389 dated June N

29, 2007, issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment. During its operation, the
Company has received several amended Enterprise Registration Certificates due to changes in legal
representative, business lines, charter capital, branch information, and head office address. The 17th
amended Enterprise Registration Certificate was issued on September 28, 2022.

Charter capital according to the 17th business registration certificate: 373,500,000,000 VND
Actual capital contributed as of December 31, 2024: 373,500,000,000 VND

Head office:

Address : No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City.
Telephone 1 024 6273 2659

Fax : 024 6273 2668

Tax code 0102306389

Affiliated Units:

Unit Name Address

Branch of PVI Investment and Development Joint Trung Dung Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Stock Company in Dong Nai Provinee

Representative Office:
Office Name Address

Representative Office of PVI Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company (Ho Chi Minh

City)

No. 135 Le Duan Street, Ben Nghe Ward, District
1, Ho Chi Minh City

Main Business Activities of the Company during the Year:
- Real estate investment and trading services;
- Financial investment services.
Financial Situation and Business Operations
The financial situation as of December 31, 2024, along with the business performance and cash flows

for the fiscal year ending on the same date, is presented in the Financial Statements attached to this
report (from page 07 to page 40).




PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
REPORT OF THE GENERAL DIRECTOR (CONTINUED)

Subsequent Events
The General Director confirms that there have been no other events occurring after December 31, 2024,

up to the date of preparation of these financial statements that require adjustment to the figures or
disclosure in the financial statements.

The Board of Directors and the General Director
The members of the Board of Directors, the General Director, and the Internal Auditor of the Company
during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Directors

Full Name Position

Mr. Nguyen Phuc Anh Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Anh Tuan Member

Mr. Lam Nhat Son Member Dismissed on March 3, 2025

Mr. Vu Xuan Han Member

Mr. Phan Trinh Quoc Kien Independent No longer an independent member
Member from March 3, 2025

General Director

Full Name Position

Mr. Vu Xuan Han General Director

Internal Audit

Full Name Position

Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Nhung Head of Internal Audit
Auditor

Nhan Tam Viet Auditing Company Limited has audited the Financial Statements for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2024.

Statement of Responsibility of the General Directors for the Financial Statements
The General Directors is responsible for preparing the Financial Statements that fairly and accurately

reflect the Company's financial position, business performance, and cash flows for the year.

During the preparation of the Financial Statements, the Company's General Directors commits to
complying with the following requirements:

s Establishing and maintaining internal controls as determined necessary by the Executive Board and
General Directors to ensure that the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements are
free from material misstatements due to fraud or error;

e Selecting appropriate accounting policies and applying them consistently;

e Making reasonable and prudent assessments and estimates;

e Stating whether the applied accounting standards have been complied with and disclosing any
material deviations that require explanation in the Financial Statements;

e Preparing and presenting the Financial Statements in compliance with the Accounting Standards,
the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System, and relevant legal regulations governing financial
reporting;

e Preparing the Financial Statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume
that the Company will continue its operations.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
REPORT OF THE GENERAL DIRECTOR (CONTINUED)

Although as at December 31, 2024, the Company’s accumulated loss amounted to VND
(149,466,454,779), accounting for 40.02% of its owner’s equity. In addition, significant provisions have
been made for short-term trade receivables, other short-term receivables, long-term receivables,
inventories, and long-term financial investments, indicating substantial impairment. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

However, during 2024, the Company has actively implemented various measures and strategies to
deploy investment projects in order to address its financial difficulties. As of December 31, 2024, the
Company had no overdue debts that it was unable to repay, and the debt-to-total-assets ratio stood at
10.91%.

Based on these factors, the General Director believes that the above-mentioned issues do not affect the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The General Director ensures that accounting records are maintained to accurately and fairly reflect the
Company's financial position at any given time and that the Financial Statements comply with the
prevailing regulations of the State. Additionally, the Executive Board is responsible for safeguarding
the Company's assets and implementing appropriate measures to prevent and detect fraud and other
violations.

The General Director commits that the Financial Statements fairly and accurately reflect the Company's
financial position as of December 31, 2024, as well as its business performance and cash flows for the
fiscal year ending on the same date, in accordance with Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System, and relevant legal regulations governing financial reporting.

Oither commitmenty

The General Director commits that the Company complies with Decree 155/2020/ND-CP dated December
31, 2020, which provides guidance on corporate governance applicable to public companies. Additionally,
the Company has not violated disclosure obligations as stipulated in Circular No. 96/2020/TT-BTC dated
Navemher 16, 2020, issned hy the Ministry of Finanece, guiding information disclosure in the securities
market.

Hanoi, March 29, 2025

ol
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CONG TY TNHH KIEM TOAN NHAN TAM VIET
NHANTAMVIET AUDITING COMPANY

K&t ndi - Phdt trién

Tru S& Chinh:

Tang

No. : 2207.01.02/2024/BCTC-NVT2

AUDITOR’S REPORT

To . Shareholders, Board of Directors, General Director
PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company

We have audited the financial statements of PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company, which were
prepared on 29 March 2025, from page 07 to page 40, including the balance sheet as at 31 December
2025, the income statement, the cash flow statement and the notes to the financial statements for the
fiscal year then ended. '

Responsibility of the General Director

The General Director of PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company is responsible for the preparation and
the presentation to give a true and fair view of the financial statements of the Company in accordance
with the prevailing Vietnamese Accounting Standards and System as well as other related regulations,
and is responsible for internal control which The General Director realizes that it is necessary to ensure
the preparation and the presentation of the financial statements to be free from material errors due to
frauds or mistakes.

Responsibility of the Auditor

Our responsibility is to express our opinions on these financial statements on the basis of our audit. Our
audit is conducted in accordance of the Vietnamese Independent Auditing Regulations and Standards.
These standards require that we comply with the standards and professional ethical requirements, plan
and perform the audit procedures to obtain a reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material mistakes.

The audit fieldwork includes the implementation of procedures to obtain audit evidence supporting the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The audit procedures are selected on the basis
of the auditor’s judgment, including the assessments of risks of material mistakes in the financial
statements due to errors or fraud. When assessing these risks, the auditor had considered whether the
internal control system of the Company related to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements is true and fair to design audit procedures that are appropriate with actual situation, however,
not provide the opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company. The audit
also includes our assessment on the appropriateness of the accounting policies applied, the accounting
estimates of the The General Director as well as our evaluation on the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT (Cont.)

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view, in all material
respects, of the financial position as at 31 December 2025, the business results and the cash flows for
the fiscal year then ended of PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company in conformity with the Vietnamese
Accounting Standards and System as well as other legal regulations related to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

- We draw attention to Notes V.3, V.5a, V.5b, and V.6 of the accompanying financial statements, which
disclose that PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company has initiated legal proceedings against Viet
Electronics and Telecommunications Joint Stock Company, Hoan My Gia Company Limited, Red Star
Development Investment Joint Stock Company, and Mr. Le Van Tung. This matter continues to affect
PV2's financial position in 2024. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

- As disclosed in Note VII.7, as at December 31, 2024, the Company's accumulated losses amounted to
VND (149.,466,454,779), accounting for 40.02% of owners' equity. Significant impairment provisions
have been made, as detailed in the following notes: short-term trade receivables, other short-term
receivables, long-term receivables (Notes V.3, V.5a, V.5b); real estate inventories (Note V.6); and
long-term financial investments (Note V.2¢). These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Ilowever, since 2017, the company's business operations have become profitable. As of December 31,
2024, the company had no overdue debts that it was unable to repay. Based on these factors, the
General Director believes that the aforementioned issues do not affect the preparation of the financial
statements under the going concern assumption.

These matters do not affect our unqualified opinion on the financial statements as stated above.

Ha Noi, 29 March 2025
NHAN TAM VIET AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED
Deputy General Director Auditor

Nguyen Thi Hanh Pham Van Tuan
Auditor’s Certificate No. 1690-2023-124-1 Auditor’s Certificate No. 4497-2023-124-1
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

Beginning balance

Cod

ASSETS e Note Ending balance
A - CURRENT ASSETS 100 117,878,446,951
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 V.1 55,885,496,160
1. Cash 111 25,995.496,160
2.  Cash equivalents 112 29,890,000,000
II. Short-term financial investments 120 56,437,502,313
1. Trading securities 121 V.2a 17,889.,916,627
9 Allm?fa:nce for diminution in the value of trading 122 Voa (4,002.414314)

securities

3. Held-to-maturity investments 123 V.2b 42,550,000,000
III. Short-term account receivable : 130 3,774,047,052
1. Trade receivable 131 V.3 21,099,000,000
2. Advances to suppliers 132 V4 792,436,364
3. Intercompany receivables 133 -
4. Receivables according to the progress of constructio 134 -
5.  Receivables for current loans 135 -
6. Other current receivables 136  V.5a 43,454,809,678
7. Allowance for doubtful debt 137 V.5a (61,572,198,990)
8.  Shortage of assets waiting for resolution 139 -
IV. Inventories 140 V.6 1,218,440,000
1. Inventories 141 26,168,166.326
2. Allowance for for obsolete inventories 149 (24,949,726,326)
V. Other current assets 150 562,961,426
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 V.7 108,022,546
2. Deductible value added tax 152 173,872,941
3. Tax and other receivables from the State 153 V.12 281,065,939
4.  Government bond repurchase transactions 154 .
5  Others 155 =

81,848,730,688

8,567,328,804
8,567,328,804

35,280,700,185
16,083.314,425

(2,352,614,240)
21.550,000,000

36,254,559,055
21,599,000,000
693,136,364

76,034,621,681
(62,072,198,990)

1,218,440,000
26,168,166,326
(24,949,726.,326)

527,702,644

72,763,764
173,872,941
281,065,939
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (continued)

ASSETS
B - NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivable

Trade receivable

Advances to suppliers

Business capital in affiliated units
Intercompany receivables
Receivables for non-current loans
Other non-current receivables
Allowance for doubtful debt

N s W -

II. Fixed assets

1. Tangible fixed assets
Historical cost
Accumulated depreciation

2. Finance leases
Historical cost
Accumulated depreciation

3. Intangible fixed assets
Historical cost
Accumulated amortization

III. Investment property
Historical cost
Accumulated depreciation

Long-term work in progress
Long-term work in progress
Construction in progress

B g

Long-term financial investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in associates, affiliates

Equity investments in other entities

Allowance for diminution in the value of long-
term financial investments

5. Held-to-maturity investments

- Sl

. Other non-current assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Long-term equipment, supplies, spare parts
Other non-current assets

PR~

TOTAL ASSETS

Cod

200

210
211
212
213
214
215
216
219

220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

230
231
232

240
241
242

250
251
252
253

254
255

260
261
262
263
268

270

Note Ending balance Beginning balance
140,924,341,793 318,524,866,696
83,403,181,482 124,466,969,153

V.5b 127.127.877,070 168,191,604,741
V.5b (43,724,695,588) (43.724,695,588)
157,819,165 650,897,557

V.8 157,819,165 650,897,557

3,223,759,275
(3,065,940,110)

95,400,000
(95,400,000)

36,422,100,760
V.9a 1,292,852.516
V.9b 35,129,248,244
20,848,773,740
V.2¢ 840,000,000
V.2c 33,464,570,560

V.2c (13.455,796,820)

92,466,646
MT 92,466,646

3,223,759,275
(2,572,861,718)

95,400,000
(95,400,000)

180,979,400,079
1,292.852.516
179,686,547,563

12,427,599,907

490,000,000
25,352,420,560

(13,414,820,653)

258,802,788,744

400,373,597,384
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Balance Sheet (continued)

Cod
CAPITAL SOURCES e Note Ending balance  Beginning balance
C - LIABILITIES 300 28,225,196,268 155,586,254,754
c
I.  Current liabilities 310 28,225,196,268 155,586,254,754 «
1. Trade payables 311 V.10 17,206,527 10,040,008
2. Advances from customers 312 V.11 1,292,852,516 151.292,852.516
3. Statutory obligations 313 V.12 22,791,893,275 138,889,769
4. Payables to employees 314 440,780,000 464,823,230
5. Accrued expenses 315 79,259,259 70,000,000
6. Intercompany payables 316 = .
T Payables .accorcling to the progress of the 317 ) )
construction contracts
Unrealized revenues 318 - -
Other non-current payables 319 V.13 2,851,549,597 2,812,994,137
10. Short-term borrowings 320 - -
11. Provision for current payables 321 - -
12, Bunus and wellare [uimd 322 V.14 751,655,094 796,655,094
153. Stabilization fund 323 - -
14. Government bond repurchase transactions 324 - -
II. Non-current liabilities 330 - -
I, Trade payables 33l . ’
2. Advances from customers 332 - -
3. Accrued expenses 333 - -
4.  Intercompany payables on business capital 334 - -
5.  Intercompany payables 335 - .
6. Unrealized revenues 336 - -
7. Other non-current payables 337 = -
8. Long-term borrowings 338 - -
9. Convertible bonds 339 - -
10. Preferred shares 340 - =
11. Deferred tax liabilities 341 - -
12. Provision for non-current payables 342 - =
13. Scientific and technological development fund 343 - -
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Balance Sheet (continued)

Cod
CAPITAL SOURCES e
D- OWNERS' EQUITY 400
I. Capital 410
1. Issued share capital 411
- Common shares with voting rights 4lia
- Preferred shares 411h
2. Share premium 412
3. Option to convert bonds 413
4.  Other capitals of owners 414
5. Treasury shares 415
6. Asset revaluation differences 416
7. Foreign exchange differences 417
8. Investment and development fund 418
9. Business arrangement support fund 419
10. Other funds under owners' equity 420
11. Retained earnings 421
i Accu_mu!area' retained earnings by the end of the 421a
previous year
- Retained earmings of the current year 421b
12. Funds for capital construction investment 422
II. Other funds 430
Funding 431
2. Funds that have formed fixed assets 432
TOTAL LIABILITES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 440
Prepared by Chief Accountant

Note Ending balance  Beginning balance
230,577,592,476 244,787,342,630

V.15 230,577,592,476 244,787,342,630
373,500,000,000 373,500,000,000
373,500,000,000 373,500,000,000
2,790,387,000 2,790,387,000
(3,546,600,829) (3.546.600,829)
7,300,261,084 7.300,261,084
(149.,466.454,779) (135,256,704,625)
(133,256,704,6235) (143,820,148,233)
(14,209,750,154) 8,563,443,608
258,802,788,744 400,373,597,384

Le Thi Huong
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. | Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

INCOME STATEMENT
Year 2024
Unit: VND
Cod
ITEMS e Note Current year Previous year
L Rew.j:nue from sales of goods and rendering of 01 VL1 150,000,000,000 )
services
2. Revenue deductions 02 - =
3, zlla.tv;'::senue from sales of goods and rendering of 10 150,000,000,000 )
4. Cost of goods sold 11 VI.2 167,712,843,613 4,957,028,905
5. :}c:i?:elzroﬁt from sales of goods and rendering of 20 (17,712,843,613) (4,957,028,905)
6. Financial income 21 VI3 12,875,986,597 16,282,469,914
7. Financial expenses 22 V14 1,980,410,255 (4,336,664,378)
In which: interest expenses 23 - -
8. Selling expenses 25 - -
9. General and administrative expenses 26 VIS 7,392,482,883 7,097,198,551
10. Net profit from operating activities 30 (14,209,750,154) 8,564,906,836
11. Other income 31 - -
12. Other expenses 32 - 1,463,228
13. Other profit 40 - (1,463,228)
14. Accounting profit before tax 50 (14,209,750,154) 8,563,443,608
15. Current corporate income tax expense 51 V16 - -
16. Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 - -
17. Net profit after corporate income tax 60 (14,209,750,154) 8,563,443.608
18. Basic earnings per share 70 VL7 (385.41) 23227
19. Diluted earnings per share 71 VL7 (385.41) 232.27
arch 29, 2025
Prepared by Chief Accountant

r
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

=8

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Under direct method)
Year 2024

ITEMS

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties
Provisions

Exchange gains, losses arising from revaluation

of monetary items denominated in foreign currency
Profits, losses from investing activities

Interest expenses

Other adjustments

Operating income before changes in working
capital

Inerease, deercasc in reccivables

Increase, decrease in inventories

Increase, decrease in payables

Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses

Increase, decrease in trading securities

Interest paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other proceeds from operating activities

Other payments for operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for purchases or construction of fixed
assets and other long - term assets

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other
long - term assets

Loans to and payments for purchase of debt
instruments of other entities

Collections from borrowers and proceeds from
disposal of debt instruments of other entities
Payments for investments in other entities
Proceeds from disposal of investments in other entities
Interests and dividends received

Net cash flows from investing activities

12

Cod

€

01

02
03

04
05
06
07

08
09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

20

21

22

24
25

27
30

Note

Current year

Unit: VND

Previous year

(14,209,750,154)

493,078,392
1,190,776,241

8,563,443,608

493,078,392
(1,392,958.044)

6.244,750,516  (15,561,053.685)
(6,281,145,005)  (7,897,489,729)
70,305 805,080 2%,558.876.882
(127,316,058,486) 189,256,419
(127,725,428) (47,083.844)
(1,806,602,202) 1,788,296,757
(45,000,000) :
(56,180,725,841)  22,591,856,485

(23,155,544,294)
150,000,000,000
(39,000,000,000)

18,000,000,000

(449.838.214)

(24,500,000,000)

6,500,000,000

(8,462,150,000) (888,370,560)
6,116,587.491 2,838,419,840
103,498,893,197  (16,499,788,934)
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Cod
ITEMS e

II1. Cash flows from financing activities
1. Proceeds from share issuance, capital contribution

of owners 31
2. Repayments of capital contributions to owners and

re-purchase of stocks already issued 32
3. Drawdown of borrowings 33
4. Repayments of borrowings 34
5. Repayments of finance lease 35
6. Dividends, profits paid to shareholders 36

Net cash flows from financing activities 40

Net cash flows during the year 50

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 60

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash 61

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 70

Prepared by

/gﬁ/

Le Thi Huong Le Thi Huong
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Note Current year Previous year
47,318,167,356 6,092,067,551

V.1 8,567,328,804 2,475,261,253

V.l 55,885,496,160 8,567,328,804

Vu Xuan Han
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024

I OPERATION FEATURES

1.  Ownership form Joint Stock Company.

2.  Business highlights

PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company, formerly known as PVI Investment and Development Joint
Stock Company, was established under Business Registration Certificate No. 0102306389 dated
June 29, 2007, issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and Investment. During its operation,
the Company has received several amended Enterprise Registration Certificates due to changes in
legal representative, business lines, charter capital, branch information, and head office address.
The 17th amended Enterprise Registration Certificate was issued on September 28, 2022.

Charter capital according to the 17th business registration certificate: 373,500,000,000 VND
Actual capital contributed as of December 31, 2024: 373,500,000,000 VIND

Head office:

Address : No. 1 Pham Van Bach Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City.
Telephone : 024 6273 2659

Fax : 024 6273 2668

Taxcode: 0102306389

3. Business Sector: Trading and Services.

4.  Main business activities: Real Estate Trading and Investment Services; Financial Investment
Services.

5. Common producing and business cycle: within 12 months

6. Employees:
At the end of the fiscal year, the Company had 16 employees (09 employees at the beginning of the
year).

7.  Characteristics of the Company's operations during the year that affect the Financial
Statements: None

8.  Statement on comparability of information on financial statements:
The data in the 2024 financial statements is consistent and comparable with the 2023 financial
statements

7
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

IL.

III.

FISCAL YEAR AND STANDARD CURRENCY UNIT USED IN ACCOUNTING

Fiscal year
Fiscal year of the Company is from January 1 to December 31 annually.

Standard currency unit used in accounting
The standard currency unit used in accounting is Vietnam dong (VND).

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM APPLIED

Accounting system

The Company has been applying the Vietnamese Accounting System issued in accordance with the
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC
amending and supplementing Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC of the Finance Minister and the
Circulars giving guidance on the implementation of accounting standards and system of the
Ministry of Finance.

Statement on the compliance with the accounting standards and system

The CEO ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and
System issued in accordance with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014,
Circular No, 53/2016/1'1-B1'C amending and supplementing Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC of
the Finance Minister and the Circulars giving guidance on the implementation of accounting
standards and system of the Ministry of Finance in the preparation of these financial statements.

Applicable accounting form
The Company has been using the accounting form of general journal recording in the computer.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis for preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared on an accrual accounting basic (except for cash flow-related
information).

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand, demand deposits, and monetary gold used for value storage, excluding
gold classified as inventory, used as raw materials for production or goods for sale.

Financial Investments
Trading Securities

An investment is classified as a trading security when it is held for the purpose of buying and
selling to earn a profit.

Trading securities are recorded in the accounting books at historical cost. The historical cost of
trading securities is determined based on the fair value of the consideration paid at the transaction
date, plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

Trading securities are recognized when the Company obtains ownership rights. Specifically, for
listed securities, recognition occurs at the trade matching date (T-+0).




PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Interest, dividends, and profits relating to periods before the acquisition of trading securities are
deducted from the carrying value of those securities. Interest, dividends, and profits arising after
the acquisition date are recognized as revenue. Dividends received in the form of shares are tracked
only as an increase in the number of shares held.

A provision for the decline in value of trading securities is made for each type of security that is
traded on the market and has a market price lower than its historical cost. The fair value of trading
securities listed on the stock exchange or traded on the UPCOM system is determined as the
closing price at the end of the reporting period. If no trading activity occurred on the closing date,
the fair value is based on the closing price of the most recent trading session prior to the reporting
date.

Any increase or decrease in the provision for the decline in value of trading securities as at the
reporting date is recognized in financial expenses.

Investments held to maturity

An investment is classified as held to maturity when the company intends and has the ability to
hold it until its maturity date. Investments held to maturity include: time deposits in banks
(including promissory notes and certificates of deposit), bonds, preferred stocks that the issuer is
required to repurchase at a certain point in the future, loans held to maturity for the purpose of
earning periodic interest, and other investments held to maturity.

Investments held to maturity are initially recognized at cost, which includes the purchase price and
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, these investments are carried at recoverable
value. luteresl incoiue lrom investiments held o maturity after the purchase date is recognized in
the Income Statement on an accrual basis. Interest accrued before the company holds the
investment is deducted fivm e purchase price al (he time ol acquisition.

Investments in Associates
Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but does not have
control over its financial and operating policies. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not equate to control over
those policies.

Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost, including the purchase price or capital
contribution together with any directly attributable transaction costs. In cases where the investment
is made in non-monetary assets, the cost of the investment is measured at the fair value of the non-
monetary assets at the date of the transaction.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities
Investments in equity instruments of other entities include investments in equity instruments where
the company does not have control, joint control, or significant influence over the investee.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognized at cost, including the
purchase price or the capital contribution, plus any direct costs related to the investment activity.
Dividends and profits from periods prior to the purchase of the investment are accounted for as a
reduction in the value of the investment itself.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4.

Recognition of account receivables

The receivables of debts are recognized at their book value minus the provisions for doubtful debts.
Receivables are classified as receivables from customers and other receivables according to the
following principles:

* Receivables from customers represent commercial receivables arising from buying - selling

transactions, including receivables on the sales proceeds from the export consignment to
another unit.

e Other receivables reflect non-commercial receivables unrelated to purchase and sale
transactions.

Provisions for bad debts are made for each bad debt based on the overdue age or estimated losses,
specifically as follows:
e For overdue receivables:
- 30% of the value for debts overdue from 6 months to less than 1 year.
- 50% of the value for debts overdue from 1 year to less than 2 years.
- 70% of the value for debts overdue from 2 years to less than 3 years.
- 100% of the value for debts receivable from 3 years or more.
e  For non-overdue but doubtful debts, the provision is based on estimated loss.

Inventories

Inventories are recognized at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost of inventories is determined as follows:

e Raw materials, goods: include purchase costs and other directly attributable costs incurred to
bring the inventory to its current location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventory in the ordinary course of production

and business, less estimated costs to complete and estimated costs necessary to sell the inventory.

The value of inventories is determined using the weighted average cost method and accounted for

using the perpetual inventory system.

Provision for devaluation of inventories is made at year-end when the net realizable valuc of

inventories falls below their original cost.

Recognition and depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties

@) Recognition and depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are determined by their historical costs less accumulated depreciation.
Historical costs include all the expenses incurred to acquire the asset and bring it to its working
condition. Other expenses incurred subsequent to the initial recognition are included in historical
costs of fixed assets only if they enhance future economic benefits . Those which do not meet the
above conditions will be recorded into expenses.

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed, its historical cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, and gains or losses are included in income or expenses for the year.

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The
depreciation periods are estimated as follows:

Fixed assets Number of years
Means of transportation, transmission 04 -05
Office tools and equipment 03 -05
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

b) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents directly related costs (including interest expenses if any) to
assets in construction progress, machinery and equipment being installed as well as expenses
related to the repair of fixed assets in progress. These assets are recorded at cost and not
depreciated.

¢) Investment properties
Investment properties represent land use rights, depreciated using the straight-line method over the
land lease term. The depreciation period is 40 years.

d) Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets include software programs.

Recognition of prepaid expenses

Tools and equipments

Tools and equipment in use are allocated to expenses on a straight-line basis over a period not
exceeding three years.

Payables and accured expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts payable in the future related to goods or
services already received. Accrued expenses are recognized based on reasonable estimates on the
payable amount.

Payables are classified as commercial payables, accrued expenses and other payables according to

the following principles:

e Payables to suppliers reflec commercial payables arising from purchases of goods, services or
assets and the seller is independent from the Company, including payables when import
through authorized receivers.

e Accrued expenses reflect payables for goods or services received from seller or provided to a
buyer but unpaid due to lack of invoices or incomplete documentation, and payables to
employees on vacation pay, accrued production and business expenses.

e Other payables reflect non-commercial payables unrelated to purchasing or selling goods or
services.

Recognition of owner’s equity
Owner’s investment capital
Owner’s investment capital is recognized based on actual contributions by shareholders.

Surplus equity

Surplus equity is recorded as the difference between the issue price and the par value of shares
when first issued, additional issued or the difference between the re-issue price and the book value
of treasury stocks. Expenses related to the additional issuance of shares and re-issuance of treasury
shares are recorded as a decrease in surplus equity.

Funds
Appropriated as per resolutions of the GMS and used per the Company’s Charter.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10.

Treasury stocks

When the Company repurchases its issued shares, the payment including transaction-related costs
is recorded as treasury stocks and recognized as a deduction in equity. When reissuance, the
difference between the reissuance price and the book value of the treasury stocks is recorded as
surplus equity.

Funds are appropriated and used per the Company’s Charter.

Retained profit

Reflects business results (profit, loss) after corporate income tax and the distribution or offsetting
of such earnings.

Dividends
Dividends are recognized as liabilities when declared.

Recognition of revenue
Revenue from sales of goods and products

Revenue from the sale of goods and finished products is recognized when the following conditions
are simultaneously satisfied:

- The Company has transferred the majority of risks and rewards associated with the ownership of
the goods or products to the buyer.

- The Company no longer retains control or managerial authority over the goods as the owner or
has lost the ability to control the goods.

- Revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer has the right to
return the purchased goods or products under specific conditions, revenue is recognized only when
such conditions no longer exist, and the buyer no longer has the right to return the goods or
praducts (except in cases where the customer has the right tn refurn goads in exchange for other
goods or services).

- The Company has received or will receive economic benefits from the sale transaction.

- The costs associated with the sale transaction can be determined.

Revenue from service provision

Revenue from a service transaction is recognized when the outcome of the transaction can be
measured reliably. If the service is performed over multiple periods, revenue is recognized for each
period based on the completion of work as of the end of the accounting period. The outcome of a
service transaction is determined when all the following conditions are met:

- Revenue can be measured reliably. When the contract stipulates that the buyer has the right to
return the purchased service under specific conditions, revenue is only recognized when such
conditions no longer exist, and the buyer no longer has the right to return the provided service.

- It is probable that economic benefits associated with the service transaction will flow to the
entity.

- Identify the work completed at the end of the financial year.

- Determine the costs incurred for the transaction and the cost to complete the transaction.

Interest
Interest is recognized on an accrual basis and is determined based on the balance of deposit
accounts and the actual interest rate applicable for each period.
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PV2Z INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Recognition of cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold in the year was recorded in accordance with the revenue generated in the period
and ensured compliance with the prudent principle.

For the cost of direct materials consumed which is over the normal lever, labor costs, and
manufacturing overheads not allocated to finished products are recorded directly into the cost of
goods sold (after deducting compensation, if any) even if the product or goods have not been
identified as being sold.

The provision for inventory devaluation is accounted for in the cost of goods sold based on the
quantity of inventory and the difference where the net realizable value is lower than the original
cost of the inventory. When determining the volume of inventory subject to devaluation for
provisioning, the accountant must exclude the inventory volume that has been contracted for sale
(with a net realizable value not lower than the book value) but has not yet been delivered to the
customer, provided there is solid evidence that the customer will not abandon the contract.

Recognition of financial expenses

This principle reflects financial operation costs, including expenses or losses related to financial
investment activities, lending and borrowing costs, joint venture and affiliate investment expenses,
losses from short-term securities transfer, transaction costs for securities sales, provisions for
devaluation of trading securities, provisions for losses on investments in other entities, losses from
foreign currency sales, and exchange rate losses.

Recognition of general administrative expenses

General administrative expenses represent the company's general management costs, including
expenses for wages and salaries of administrative personnel (wages, salaries, allowances, etc.),
social insurance, health insurance, labor union fees, unemployment insurance for administrative
staff, office material costs, labor tools, depreciation of fixed assets used for administration, land
lease payments, business license tax, provisions for doubtful debts, outsourced services (electricity,
water, telephone, fax, property insurance, fire and explosion insurance, etc.), and other cash
expenses (hospitality, customer conferences, etc.).

Recognition of current corporate income tax, deferred income tax expenses

Current corporate income tax

Corporate income tax expense is calculated based on taxable income. Taxable income is different
from accounting profit due to adjustments for temporary differences between tax and accounting,
non-deductible expenses, adjustments of non-taxable income and transferred losses.

The company is obligated to pay corporate income tax at a rate of 20%,

Financial assets
Classification of financial assets

The company classifies financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value
on income statement, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial asset and is
determined at initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognized at fair value through the statement of income
Financial assets that are classified as being recognized at fair value on the income statement if held
for trading or classified at fair value on the income statement at the time of initial recognition.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the company intends and is able to hold to maturity.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
not listed on the market.

Available for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets identified as available for sale
or not classified as fair value financial assets on the income statement, held-to-maturity
investments or loans and receivables.

Initial book value of a financial asset

Financial assets are recognized on the purchase date and derecognised on the selling date. At the
time of initial recognition, financial asset is determined at purchase price/issuance cost plus other
costs directly attributable costs.

Financial liabilitics
Financial instruments are classified as financial liabilities or equity instruments at initial
recognition based on their nature and definitions

Financial liabilities

The company classifies financial liabilities into categories: financial liabilities at fair value on the
income statement, financial liabilities determined by allocated valuc. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the liabilities and is determined af initial recognition.

Financial liabilities that are recognized at fair value on the income statement
Financial liabilities are classified as being recognized at fair value on the income statement if held
for trading or classified at fair value on the statement at the time of initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as securities held for trading if:

e [tis issued or incurred primarily for repurchase in the near term;

e The company intends to hold for short-term profit;

e A derivative (except derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or effective hedging
instrument).

Financial liabilities are determined at allocated value

Financial liabilities are determined at allocated value at the initial recognition value minus
principal repayments, plus or minus accumulated allocation under the real interest rate method of
the difference between the initial recognition value and the maturity value, minus any deductions
(either directly or through the use of a contingency account) due to impairment or uncollectibility.

The net interest method calculated the allocated value of one or a group of financial liabilities and
distributing the interest income or interest expense in the relevant year. Net rate is the rate at which
cash flows are estimated to be paid or received in the future over the intended life of the financial
instrument, or a shorter period if appropriate, to return to the present bookeeping amount of
financial liabilities.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17.

Initial bookeeping value of financial liabilities

At the time of initial recognition, financial liabilities are determined at the issue price plus directly
attributable expenses.

Equity instruments

An equity tool is a contract that proves the remaining benefits in the Company's assets after
subtracting all liabilities.

Related parties

Entities are considered related parties if one entity has control or significantly influence the
financial and operating policies of the other. Entities are also considered related if they are under

common control or joint significant influence.

When evaluating the relationship between related parties, the substance of the relationship is
emphasized over its legal form.

Transactions with related parties during the year are disclosed in Note VILI

ADDTIONAL INFTORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Cash and cash equivalents

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cash on hand 178,880,158 45,839,420
Cash in bank (demand deposit) 25,816.616,002 8,521,489,384
Cash equivalents 29,890,000,000 -
Total 55,885,496,160 8,567,328,804
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Changes in the provision for devaluation of trading securities

Current year Previous year
Beginning balance (2,352,614,240) (8,533,524,484)
Additional provision (1,649,800,074) (457,899.711)
Provision reversal - 6,638,809,955
Ending balance (4,002,414,314) (2,352,614,240)
b) Held to maturity investments

Current year Previous year
Time deposits 42.550,000,000 21.550,000,000
Total 42,550,000,000 21,550,000,000

These are time deposits with a maturity of over 3 months to 12 months at banks.

¢) Investing in other entities

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Investment in joint
ventures and associates 840,000,000 (165,389,729) 490,000,000 (124,413,562)
Aladin Technology Joint
Stock Company (1) 490,000,000 (165,389,729) 490,000,000 (124,413,562)

Sam Smart Automation

Management Joint Stock

Company (2) 350,000,000 - - =
Investing in other entities 33,464,570,560 (13,290,407,091) 25352.420,560 (13,290,407,091)
Noan Ket Tndustrial

Cooperative (3) 13,678,080,000 (13,290,407,091) 13,678,080,000 (13,290,407,091)
PVI Reinsurance Joint

Stock Corporation (4) 19,786,490,560 - 11,674,340,560 -
Total 34,304,570,560 (13,455,796,820) 25,842,420,560 (13,414,820,653)

(1): This is an investment in Aladin Technology Joint Stock Company according to Decision No.
12/QDB-HDQT dated November 16, 2016 of the Board of Directors of PV2 Investment Joint Stock
Company. Accordingly, the Company contributed VND 490,000,000, equivalent to 49% of the
charter capital. Aladin Technology Joint Stock Company was established under Enterprise
Registration Certificate No. 0107641285 dated November 21, 2016, with a charter capital of VND
1,000,000,000.

(2): This is an investment in SAM Intelligent Automation Management Joint Stock Company
according to Resolution No. 05/NQ-HPQT dated December 12, 2024 of the Board of Directors of
PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company. Accordingly, the Company committed to contribute VND
3,860,000,000, equivalent to 38.990% of the charter capital. As of December 31, 2024, the
Company had contributed VND 350,000,000.

(3): This is an expenditure to acquire equity from members of Doan Ket Industrial Cooperative to
convert land use purposes and develop infrastructure at No. 30 Tan Mai Street, Hoang Mai District,
Hanoi. As of September 30, 2024, the Company had contributed VND 13,678,080,000, equivalent
to 26.582% of the charter capital. Provision value was made based on the 2023 tax-submitted
financial statements of Doan Ket Industrial Cooperative. In 2024, the Cooperative's Annual
Member Meeting approved the profit distribution plan for 2023 and the 2024 business plan,
continuing to report profit. PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company received VND 63,321,915 as a
2023 dividend payment.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(4): PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company holds 1,580,000 shares of PVIRe — PVI Reinsurance
Joint Stock Corporation, with a total value of VND 19,786,490,560, representing 1.5% of the
charter capital. Of which, all 1,580,000 shares are freely transferable, and 0 shares are restricted. In

2024, the Company received a dividend payment of VND 2,528,000,000.

3. Short-term receivable from customers
Ending balance Beginning balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision

Receivable from other

customers 21,099,000,000 21,099,000,000
Viet Telecommunication and

Electronic Joint Stock

21,099,000,000 21,099,000,000

Company (1) 21,094,000,000 (21,094,000,000) 21,094,000,000 (21,094,000,000)
Other customers 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 s
Total 21,099,000,000 (21,094,000,000) 21,099,000,000 (21,094,000,000)

(1): For the receivable from Vietnam Telecommunication and Electronics Joint Stock Company,
the Company assessed the recoverability and made a full provision for this receivable. The
Company has initiated legal proceedings in accordance with applicable laws. Pursuant to the
judgment No. 179/2019/HS-PT dated April 2, 2019 of thc High Pcople’s Court in Ilanoi,
defendants Le Quy Ilien and Pham Ngoc Nam are jointly liable to compensale PV2 Tnvestment
Inint Stock Campany a tatal amoimt of YND 19,886 000,000 (of which defendant Le Quy Hien ic
liable for VND 18,386,000,000 and defendant Pham Ngoc Nam is liable for VND 1,500,000,000).
During the year, the Company recovered VND 500,000,000.

Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Ending balance Beginning balance

Sinh Ue Consultancy Company Limited 216,000,000 216,000,000
Bien Bac Law Company Limited 50,000,000 50,000,000
VCN International Import-Export Investment

Consulting Joint Stock Company 363,636,364 363,636,364
An Du Media and Payment Data Joint Stock

Company 100,000,000 -
Other suppliers 62,800,000 63,500,000
Total 792,436,364 693,136,364
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. | Pham Van Bach. Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5

Other receivables
a) Short- term receivables

Ending balance Beginning balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Term deposit interest 1,364,084,657 - 710,400,001 =
Deposit, Call bets 24,400,000 - 24,400,000 -
Mr. Vu Quang Hoi 133,150,685 - 133,150,685 &
Hoan My Gia Company Limited
(1) 39,333,903,021 (39,333,903,021)  39,333,903,021 (39,333,903,021)

Accrued interest from Investment

trust Contract (2) 1,144,295,969 (1,144,295,969) 1,144,295969  (1,144.295,969)
Advance payment 1,304,859,153 - 774,031,062 -
Mr. Vu Viet Duong - - 20,008,109,589 -
Business cooperation principal - - 20,000,000,000 -
Business cooperation interest - = 8,109,589 =
Mr. Hoang Long - - 13,472,554,683 -
Business cooperation principal - - 12,820,272,893 -
Business cooperation interest - - 652,281,790 -
Other short-term receivables 150,116,193 - 433,776,671 =

Total

43,454,809,678 (40,478,198,990)  76,034,621,681 (40,478,198,990)

(I): This is a receivable arising from Investment Cooperation Contracts No.
06/HDHTDT/2011/PVII-HMG dated January 5, 2011, and No. 09/HPHTDT/2011/PVII-HMG
dated Fehrnary 18, 2011, along with debt obligation acknowledgment minutes signed on December
20, 2012. Accordingly, the total outstanding amount (including both principal and interest) from
these overdue entrusted investment contracts, for which the counterparty failed to fulfill its
payment obligations, is VND 53,926,219,796. The Company has recovered collateral assets in the
form of real estate located in Long Thanh District, Dong Nai Province, with a total value mutually
agreed upon by both parties under the transfer agreements, amounting to VND 27,848,539,202.
The purchase price stated in the transfer agreements was based on Valuation Certificate No.
289.1/12/CT-VVFC/CNMN dated October 23, 2012, issued by Vietnam Valuation and Financial
Consultancy Joint Stock Company — Southern Branch. As of December 31, 2024, the recovered
land lots had not yet been legally transferred to the name of PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company.
According to information from the General Department of Taxation, Hoan My Gia Co., Ltd. has
ceased operations. The Company has recognized a 100% provision for doubtful debts in relation to
this receivable.

(2): This is accrued interest income from entrusted investment contracts. The General Director has
assessed and recognized a provision for doubtful debts with a total amount of VND 1,144,295,969,
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

b) Long- term receivables

Receivables from other
organizations and
individuals

Receivable from business
cooperation contract

18 Investment Construction
Joint Stock Company (1)
Sao Do Investment and
Development Joint Stock
Company (2)

Chi Thanh Company Limited
3)

Long term Deposit, Call bets
Long Hoi Investment
Company Limited (4)

Minh Nam Construction and
Technology Investment
Company Limited (5)
Principal

Interest

Receivable from Business
Cooperation with An Pham
One Member Company
Timited (A)

Receivable from Business

Cooperation with Thien Ngan
Film Joint Stock Company (7)

Receivable from Business

Cooperation with Toka Studio

Company Limited (8)
Total

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Cost Provision

Cost Provision

127,127,877,070 (43,724,695,588)

43,724,695,588 (43,724,695,588)
26,600,000,000 (26,600,000,000)
15,000,000,000 (15,000,000,000)
2,124,695,588  (2,124,695,588)

80,916,003 :

5,090,000,000 .

73.804,265.479 -
42,050,000,000 -
31,754,265,479 -

3,000,000,000 N

978,000,000 -

450,000,000 -

168,191,664,741 (43,724,695,588)
43,724,695,588 (43,724,695,588)

26,600,000,000 (26,600,000,000)

15,000,000,000 (15,000,000,000)

2,124,695,588 (2,124,695,588)
80,916,003 -

5,090,000,000 .

119,296,053,150 -
92,900,000,000 -
26,396,053,150 =

127,127,877,070 (43,724,695,588) 168,191,604,741 (43,724,695,588)

(1): This is a receivable arising from a business cooperation contract for the investment in the
project of constructing residential housing, office buildings for lease, and other infrastructure
works located in Trung Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi. Since 2014, the Company has made a
100% provision for this doubtful receivable.

(2): This is a receivable under joint venture cooperation contracts signed with Sao Do
Development Investment Joint Stock Company (abbreviated as Sao Do Company) to invest in the
renovation and reconstruction of the old apartment complex 1A—IB Phung Chi Kien, Cau Giay
District, Hanoi, and the Gia Lam Railway Collective Housing Renovation Project in Long Bien
District. PV2 filed a lawsuit against Sao Do Company. On January 27, 2016, the Hanoi People’s
Court issued Judgment No. 10/2016/KDTM-PT regarding the joint venture contract dispute,
requiring Sao Do Company to repay PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company the full amount of
VND 15,000,000,000. As of December 31, 2024, Sao Do Company has not complied with the
enforcement of the court judgment. A 100% provision for this receivable was made in 2014.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. | Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(3): This is a receivable from Chi Thanh Company Limited, arising from a capital contribution
contract to invest in the Dien Nam — Dien Ngoc Urban Area Project in Quang Nam Province. PV2
Investment Joint Stock Company filed a lawsuit against Chi Thanh Co., Ltd., and on September 28,
2016, the People’s Court of Dien Ban Town, Quang Nam Province issued Judgment No.
12/2016/KDTM-ST, ordering Chi Thanh Co., Ltd. to pay the principal debt of VND 7,338,240,000
and accrued interest of VND 2,146,435,200. However, as of December 31, 2024, PV2 has not yet
recovered this receivable. A 100% provision for doubtful debts was recorded in 2014. In 2019, the
Company recovered VND 3,788,500,412 from this doubtful debt.

(4): Pursuant to the share purchase transfer agreement signed on October 10, 2018, PV2 transferred
the project company (a company established to manage and operate the residential area project in
Long Tan and Phu Hoi communes, Nhon Trach district, Dong Nai province, which PV2 is the
project owner) to Tay Tay Nam Investment Joint Stock Company with a total transfer value is
170,000,000,000 VND. PV2 is responsible for establishing the project company and completing
the procedures to transfer the project ownership to the project company. Long Hoi Investment Co.,
Ltd (The project company) was established according to the Business Registration Certificate No.
3603642475 issued on May 14, 2019. In 2019, PV2 contributed 5,090,000,000 VND to Long Hoi
Investment Company Limited. As of December 31, 2024, Tay Tay Nam Investment Joint Stock
Company has paid 150,000,000,000 VND according to the schedule in the contract dated October
10, 2018, and the appendix dated November 8, 2019 (refer to note No. V.11).

(5): This is a receivable under the Business Cooperation Capital Contribution Contract No.
16112021/HRGVKD-PV2-MINHNAM dated November 16, 2021, and its Appendices: Appendix
Ul dated Uctober 20, 2022; Appendix U2 dated December 8, 2022; and Appendix 03 dated
Movember 20, 2023, cigned betwoon PV2 Investment Joint Stoelc Company and Minh Mam
Construction and Technology Investment Company Limited, for implementing a project in Tay
Tuu Ward, Bac Tu Liem District, Hanoi.The total business cooperation capital contribution is
VND 150,000,000,000, with an annual interest rate of 9%. In 2024, Minh Nam Construction and
Technology Investment Co., Ltd. partially repaid the capital. As of December 31, 2024, the
outstanding principal of the business cooperation is VND 42,050,000,000, and the accrued interest
receivable is VND 31,754,265,479. The capital contribution term has been extended to December
31, 2025.

(6): This is a receivable under Contract No. 1705/2024/DP dated May 17, 2024, signed between
An Pham One Member Company Limited and PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company to implement
an investment project related to film production, distribution, and screening. The capital
contribution amount is VND 3,000,000,000, equivalent to 6% of the total investment capital, and
the Company is entitled to 6% of the net profit from the project. During the year, the Company
fully contributed the committed capital.

(7): This is a receivable under Contract No. 01/29.08.2024/CHOTDONY/GLX-PV2 dated August
29, 2024, signed between Thien Ngan Film Joint Stock Company and PV2 Investment Joint Stock
Company to carry out an investment project related to film production, distribution, and screening.
The capital contribution amount is VND 978,000,000, equivalent to 5% of the total investment
capital, and the Company is entitled to 3.5% of the net profit from the project. During the year, the
Company fully contributed the committed capital.

(8): This is a receivable under Contract No. 03/2024/HDDT/TOKASTUDIO-PV2 dated October
10, 2024, signed between Toka Studio Company Limited and PV2 Investment Joint Stock
Company for an investment project related to film production, distribution, and screening. The
capital contribution amount is VND 450,000,000, equivalent to 3% of the total investment capital,
and the Company is entitled to 3% of the net profit from the project. During the year, the Company
fully contributed the committed capital.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. Inventory
Ending balance Beginning balance
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Real estate 26,168,166,326 (24,949,726,326) 26,168,166,326 (24,949,726,326)

Mr. Le Van Giang’s real estate
in Ram village, Cu Yen - Luong
Son - Hoa Binh province (1)
Real estate in Phu Ngoc
commune, Dinh Quan district,
Dong Nai province (2) 25,680,673,326 (24,462,233,326) 25,680,673,326 (24,462,233,326)
Total 26,168,166,326 (24,949,726,326) 26,168,166,326 (24,949,726,326)

487,493,000 (487,493,000) 487,493,000 (487,493,000)

(1) Mr. Le Van Giang’s real estate in Ram village, Cu Yen - Luong Son - Hoa Binh province . As
of December 31, 2019, the Company has made provisions of 487,493,000 VND.

(2) This is the land use rights of 07 real estate properties in Phu Ngoc commune, Dinh Quan
district, Dong Nai province from Mr. Le Van Tung due to the liquidation of Real Estate
Management Contract No. 03/QLBDS/PV2-LVT dated May 25, 2011. According to the Contract
Liquidation Minutes signed on December 26, 2012, the Company received 07 real estates due to
the expiration of the Real Estate Management Contract but the partner has not yet returned the
deposit to the Company. The value of these properties was determined based on the remaining
value transferred from the investment property. The company re-evaluated the value of the land lot
based on the price set by the People's Committee of Dong Nai Province, which is 10,000 VND/m?,
in order to set up provisions for the depreciation of of this property.

=1

Prepaid cxpenscs
These are related expenses to tools and equipment waiting to be allocated.

8.  Tangible fixed assets

Means of Equipment,

transportation management tools Total
Original price
Beginning balance 2,864,586,364 359,172,911 3,223,759,275
Purchased during the period - - -
Ending balance 2,864,586,364 359,172,911 3,223,759,275
Including:
Fully depreciated but still in use - 250,958,184 230,958,184
Depreciation value
Beginning balance 2,231,944,041 340,917,677 2.572.861,718
Depreciation during the year 477,431,064 15,647,328 493,078,392
Ending balance 2,709,375,105 356,565,005 3,065,940,110
Net book value
Beginning balance 632,642,323 18,255,234 650,897,557
Ending balance 155,211,259 2,607,906 157,819,165
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9; Long term assets in progress
a) Long-term operating expenses in progress

Ending balance Beginning balance
Recoverable Recoverable
Cost value Cost value
Project on construction of houses
for employees of Dung Quat
refinery (1) 6,249,881,421 1,292,852,516 6,249,881,421 1,292.852,516
Total 6,249,881,421 1,292,852,516  6,249,881,421 1,292,852,516

(1) This is the unfinished business production cost for the Project on construction of houses for
employees of Dung Quat refinery, which the company is the investor. According to Document No.
1427/BQL-PTDT dated December 2, 2013, from the People's Committee of Quang Ngai Province,
the company was allowed to extend the project implementation deadline from July 13, 2016, to
July 13, 2021. According to the Board of Directors' Resolution dated December 22, 2023, the
company temporarily suspended the project until there is a solution from the Provincial People's
Committee and relevant authorities of Quang Ngai Province. The company has made a provision
for this project amounting to 4,957,028,905 VND.

b) Construction in progress

Ending balance Beginning balance
Recoverable Recoverable
Cost value Cost value
Praject on construction of
houses, villas in Dong Nai
province (1) 35,129,248,244  35,129,248,244 179,686,547,563 179,686.547,563
Total 35,129,248,244  35,129,248,244 179,686,547,563 179,686,547,503

Current year

Beginning balance 179,686,547,563
Expenses Incurred During the Year 23,155,544,294
Decreases During the Year (Liquidation) (167,712,843,613)
Ending balance 35,129,248,244

(1): This is the basic construction cost for the unfinished Project of Residential Area according to
the planning in Dong Nai Province based on the following documents:

+ Decision No. 1928/UBND-CN dated May 26, 2014, of the People's Committee of Dong Nai
Province approving the investment project for developing a residential area according to the master
plan of 9,991 hectares in Long Tan and Phu Hoi Communes, Nhon Trach District, Dong Nai
Province, with PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company as the investor;

+ Decision No. 2384/QD-UBND dated September 12, 2022, of the People's Committee of Dong
Nai Province approving the adjustment of the investment project for the residential area in Long
Tan and Phu Hoi Communes, adjustment round 2; Decision No. 2080/QB-UBND dated August 28,
2023, of the People's Committee of Dong Nai Province approving the third adjustment of the
investment project;

+ Decision No. 2862/QDP-UBND dated August 12, 2020, of the People's Committee of Dong Nai
Province approving the overall detailed planning adjustment for the 1/500 scale residential area in
Long Tan and Phu Hoi Communes, Nhon Trach District, Dong Nai Province;
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

+ Decision No. 876/QD-UBND dated March 7, 2018, of the People's Committee of Dong Nai
Province allowing PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company to change the land use purpose;

+ Decision No. 1299/QD-UBND dated June 2, 2023, of the People's Committee of Dong Nai
Province adjusting the land area recorded in Article 1 of Decision No. 876/QD-UBND dated
March 7, 2018;

+ Decision No. 1631/QD-UBND dated June 3, 2024, of the People's Committee of Dong Nai
Province deciding the land allocation and lease to PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company to
develop residential areas according to the planning in Long Tan and Phu Hoi Communes, Nhon
Trach District.

+ On December 30, 2024, the company signed the Transfer Agreement No. 01/2024/HPCN and its
Annex 01 with PV2 Investment Joint Stock Company. Accordingly, the company transferred the
entire "Residential Area Project in Long Tan and Phu Hoi Communes, Nhon Trach District" with a
contract value of 278,121,000,000 VND (in words: Two hundred seventy-eight trillion one
hundred twenty-one billion one hundred twenty-one million). The transfer value included
170,000,000,000 VND for land use rights, 28,521,000,000 VND for land use tax, and
79,600,000,000 VND for infrastructure investment.

10. Short-term payable to suppliers
Ending balance Beginning balance
Other suppliers 17,206,527 10,040,008
Total 17,206,527 10,040,008
11. Short-term advances from customers
Ending balance Beginning balance
Tay Tay Nam Investment Joint Stock Company 150,000,000,000
Dung Quat Refinery Project Management Board 1,292,852,516 1.292,852.516
Total 1,292,852,516 151,292,852,516
12. Taxes and other payables to the State
Beginning balance Amount incurred during the year Ending balance
Amount
Payable  Receivables payable Amount paid Payable Receivables
Corporate income tax - 281,065,939 - - - 281,065,939
Personal income tax 113,471,356 - 163,075,938 (154,587,432) 121,959,862 -
House and land tax = - 22,644,515,000 - 22,644,515,000 -
Other taxes 25,418,413 - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) 25,418,413 -
Total 138,889,769 281,065,939 22,810,590,938 (157.587,432) 22,791,893,275 281,065,939

The company's tax settlement will be subject to inspection by the tax authorities. As the application
of laws and regulations regarding taxes for various types of transactions can be interpreted in
different ways, the tax amount presented in the financial statements may be adjusted based on the
tax authorities' decision.

Value-added tax
The company pays value-added tax (VAT) using the credit method with a tax rate of 8%; 10%

Corporate income tax
The company pays corporate income tax at a rate of 20%
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13.

14.

Other taxes

The company declares and pays taxes in accordance with regulations.

Other short-term payables

Union dues

Social insurance
Dividends, profits payable
Other short-term payables
Total

Bonus and welfare funds

Bonus and welfare funds
Management and Executive Board Bonus Fund

Total

Ending balance

Beginning balance

36,900,302 20,167,964
7,805,420 17,750,420
2,547,563,173 2,547,563,173
259,280,702 227,512,580
2,851,549,597 2,812,994,137

Ending balance

Beginning balance

630,789,147
120,865,947

675,789,147
120,865,947

751,655,094

796,655,094

=/ =222 31



€€
TLY‘98L EPL TLE TLTI98L€PL TLE %10,
(628°009°975°€) (628°009°9¥5°€) sareyg Ainseal],
000°L8E°06L°T 000°L8€06L°T snjdans [eyde)

000°000°00S°€LE
uejeq sUTUUIsIY

000°000°00S‘€LE JuaUNSIAUT Aunby s, JoUMQ

2aue[eq Suipuy

1ondpo paynqripnod s,42umo fo spiag

9LP TOS'LLS 0ET

(6LL'PSH'99% 67 1)

P80°19Z°00€°L (678°009°9pS*€)

Ieak
Jua.LInd Yy Jo duejeq sulpuy

000°L8E"06LT 000°000°00S°€LE

(FS1°0SL°60Z°1)

(PST°0SL60T V1)

Jeak JuaLnog ay) Jo JoId

0€9°TYE LBL VYT (Sz9'p0L 95T SEL) ¥80°19T°00€ L (628°009°9p5°€) 000°L8E06L'T = 000°000°00S ‘€LE 1eak
JU2LIND 9y} Jo 9doue[eq Fumuuidag
0€9°THE L8LYPT (STO'POL'OST'SED) 8O TI9T00EL (678°009°0¥S°€)  000°L8E06LT 000°000°00S€LE ELENN
sno1adad 2y jo aduejeq Surpugy
809°EPP €958 809°CHF €958 2 e = = 122k snotaaad o) Jo 1joig
TTO'668°€TTIET (E€T'8PL'0T8EP)  ¥80'19T°00EL (678009°9¥S°€)  000°L8E'06LT 000°000°00S ‘€LE 1eak
) snotaaxd oy Jo asuefeq FuruuiSog

punj snjdans jende) endes

[e10], SSUIUIEd paure)ay yuamdopaaap saaeys AIinsead ], !

pUE JUIW)SIAU]

POISIAUI S IAUMQ)

dinba ui saduvyd fo juauainlg
Amnba spumQ ‘g1

(PoNuIIU0D) SJUIIILIS [BIIUEULY Y} 0} SIJON

$Z0T 12qu09(] [ £ PapU2 Ieak [vasK 3 Jog

SINTWALVLS TVYIONVNIA

AnD 1ouey otnsi(q eI NeD ‘pIEA BOH UDA ‘Yorg UBA WY | "ON SSAIPPY
ANVAINOOD MDOLS INIOT INAIW.LSTANI TAd

pr— - - Pty —m o



PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

VL

Shares

Number of shares registered for issuance
Number of shares sold to the public

- Common shares

- Preferred shares

Number of shares bought back

- Common shares

- Preferred shares

Number of shares outstanding

- Common shares

- Preferred shares

Par value of outstanding shares: 10,000 VND

Purpose of Fund Appropriations

Ending balance

Beginning balance

37.350,000
37,350,000

481,200
481,200

36,868,800
36,868,800

37,350,000
37,350,000

481,200
481,200

36.868.800
36,868,800

- Investment and development funds are used to expand the business or investment.

- Welfare fund; Executive and management bonus funds are established by appropriating from
retained profit after tax to use for rewards purposes, encouragement, public welfare services

and to improve the life of employees.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS OF THE INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from investient properly business
Total

Cost of goods sold

Cost of real estate business

Allowance for obsolete inventories (Dung Quat
Project)

Total

Financial income

Interest from deposits and loans
Dividend, profits received
Profit from sale of securities
Business Cooperation Interest
Other financial income

Total

Current year

Previous year

150,000,000,000

150,000,000,000

Current year

Previous year

167,712,843.613

- 4,957,028,905
167,712,843,613 4,957,028,905
Current year Previous year
2,327,822,100 1,234,578,813
3,004,316,915 2,272,576.,644
1,407,893,500 674,916,229
6,135,954,082 12,053.898.228

S 46,500,000

12,875,986,597 16,282,469,914
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PV2Z INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Financial expenses

Loss on securities sales

Provision/(Reversal) for impairment of trading
securities and loss of financial investments

Other financial expenses
Total

General and administrative expenses

Employee Expenses

Office Supplies Expense
Depreciation costs of fixed assets
Taxes, Fees and Charges

Provision/(Reversal) of provision for doubtful
debts

Outsourced service costs
Other Expenses
Total

Current corperate income tax expense

Current year

Previous year

255,564,564

1,690,776,241
34,069,450

1,970,986,628

(6,349,986,949)
42,335,943

1,980,410,255

(4,336,664,378)

Current year

Previous year

5,156,900,374 4,101,204,890
132,158,246 88,553,086
493,078,392 493,078,392
3,000,000 3,000,000
(500,000,000) -
1,372,779,580 1,710,213,049
734,566,291 701,149,134
7,392,482,883 7,097,198,551

Corporate income tax payable during the year is estimated as follows:

Total accounting profit before tax
Adjustments to increase or decrease accounting
profit to determine profit subjcct to corporaic
income tax:
- Incremental adjustments

+ Depreciation of cars above 1.6 billion
- Reduction adjustments

+ Income firom dividends and shared profits

Taxable income
Losses carried forward from previos years
Taxable income
Corporate income tax rate
Current corporate income tax expense

Basic/Diluted earnings per share

Accounting profit after corporate income tax
Adjustments increasing or decreasing accounting
profit to determine profit allocated to common
shareholders:

Profit used to calculate basic/diluted earnings per
share

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year

Basic/Diluted earnings per share

Current year

Previous vear

(14,209,750,154) 8,563,443,608
(2,974,069,415) (2,242,329,144)
30,247,500 30,247,500
30,247,500 30,247,500
(3,004,316,915) (2,272,576,644)
(3,004,316,915) (2,272,576,644)

(17,183,819,569)

6.321,114,464
(6,321,114,464)

(17,183,819,569)
20%

20%

Current year

Previous year

(14,209,750,154)

8,563,443,608

(14,209,750,154) 8,563,443,608
36,863,800 36,868,800
(385.41) 232.27
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year is calculated as

follows:

Current year

Previous year

Common shares outstanding at the beginning of

the year 36.868,800 36.868.800
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year 36,868,800 36,868,800
8.  Business production costs by element

Current year Previous year
Employee Expenses 5,156,900,374 4,101,204,890
Office Supplies Expense 132,158,246 88,553,086
Depreciation costs of fixed assets 493,078,392 493,078,392
Reversal of provision (500,000,000) e
Outsourced service costs 1,372,779,580 1,710,213,049
Other Expenses 737,566,291 704,149,134
Total 7,392,482,883 7,097,198,551

VII. OTHER INFORMATION
I: Related party information

Transactions with Key Management Personnel and Their Related Parties
Key management personnel and their related parties include: members of the Board of Directors,
Ll General Director, the Chief Accountant, and close family members ot these individuals.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
During the year, there were no transactions with key management personnel.

Transactions with key management personnel and their related individuals
As at the end of the financial year, the Company had no outstanding balances with key
management personnel:

Previous
Full name Position Current year year
Chairman of the Board of
Mr. Nguyen Phuc Anh Directors 319,000,000 306,000,000
General Director cum Member of
Mr. Vu Xuan Han the Board of Directors 696,500,000 780,240,000

2.  Segment Information

Segment information is presented based on business sectors and geographic regions. The primary
segment reporting is by business sector, based on the Company's organizational structure and
internal management, as well as the internal financial reporting system of the Company. This is
because the Company's business activities are organized and managed according to the nature of
the products and services provided, with each segment being a business unit offering different
products and serving different markets. The risk and profitability of the Company are mainly
affected by the differences in the products and services the Company provides.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Business Sectors

The Company operates primarily in the service sector. During the year, the Company did not
generate any revenue from business operations.

Geographical Areas

All of the Company's business activities take place within the territory of Vietnam.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents

Book value

Fair value

Ending balance

Beginning
balance

Ending balance

Beginning
balance

55,885,496,160

8,567,328.804

55,885,496,160

8.567,328,804

Trading Securities 13,887,502,313  13,730,700,185  13,887,502,313 13,730,700,185
Held-to-Maturity

Investments 42,550,000,000 21,550,000,000  42,550,000,000 21,550,000,000
Accounts Receivable

from Customers 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5.000,000
Other Receivables 86,379,792,170 160,023,391,844  86,379,792,170 160,023.391.844

Available-for-Sale

Financial Assets 20,848,773,740  12,427,599.907  20,848,773,740 12,427.599,907
Total 219,556,564,383 216,304,020,740 219,556,564,383 216,304,020,740
Financial liabilities

Accounts payable to

suppliers 17,206,527 10,040,008 17,206,527 10,040,008
Other payables 3,292,329,597 2,812,994,137 3,292,329,597 2,812.994,137
Total 3,309,536,124 2,823,034,145 3,309,536,124  2,823,034,145

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is reflected at the value that the financial
instruments could be exchanged for in a current transaction between knowledgeable and willing

parties.

The company uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable from customers, loans

receivable, other receivables, borrowings, accounts payable to suppliers, and other short-term
payables is equivalent to their book value (net of allowances for estimated uncollectible amounts)
due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of long-term loans receivable, accounts receivable from customers, other

receivables, long-term borrowings, accounts payable to suppliers, other long-term payables, and
held-to-maturity investments that are not listed on the stock exchange and do not have quoted
prices, as disclosed by the three securities companies, is estimated by discounting the cash flows
using the interest rate applicable to debts with similar characteristics and remaining maturity.

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets listed on the stock exchange is
determined based on the quoted market price as at the financial year-end date. The fair
value of unlisted available-for-sale financial assets is estimated using appropriate valuation

techniques.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4,

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party in a contract is unable to fulfill its obligations, resulting in a
financial loss for the company.
The company faces credit risks from its business activities (primarily related to accounts receivable
from customers) and financial activities (bank deposits, loans, and other financial instruments).

Accounts receivable from customers

The company minimizes credit risk by only engaging in transactions with entities that have strong
financial capabilities, requiring letters of credit for first-time or unknown financial entities, and
having the accounts receivable staff regularly monitor outstanding debts to expedite collections.
Based on this approach and the fact that the company's receivables are spread across multiple
customers, credit risk is not concentrated on any single customer.

Bank deposits
Most of the company's bank deposits are held in large, reputable banks in Vietnam. The company
perceives the credit risk concentration for its bank deposits to be low.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company faces difficulties in fulfilling its financial obligations due
to a lack of cash. The General Director is ultimately responsible for managing liquidity risk. The
company's liquidity risk primarily ariscs from the mismatched maturitics of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining an appropriate level of cash and cash
equivalents, as well as loans, at a level deemed sufficient by the Board of Directors to meet the
company’s operational needs, thereby minimizing the impact of cash flow fluctuations.

The maturity of financial liabilities is based on the expected contractual payments that have not been
discounted as follows:
Due within one Over 1 year to 5

year years Over 5 years Total

Ending balance

Accounts payable to

suppliers 17,206,527 - - 17,206,527
Other payables 3,292,329,597 - - 3,292,329,597
Total 3,309,536,124 - - 3,309,536,124
Beginning balance

Accounts payable to

suppliers 10,040,008 - - 10,040,008
Other payables 2,812,994,137 - = 2,812,994,137

Total 2,823,034,145 - 2,823,034,145

The company believes that the concentration of risk related to debt repayment is low. The company
has the ability to meet its maturing debts from cash flows generated by its business operations and
funds received from maturing financial assets.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

due to changes in market prices. Market risk includes three types: foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, and other price risks.

The sensitivity analysis presented below is based on the value of net debt, with the ratio between
fixed-rate debt and floating-rate debt remaining unchanged.
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PV2 INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 1 Pham Van Bach, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The company's interest rate risk primarily relates to cash and loans.

The company manages interest rate risk by analyzing market conditions to obtain the most favorable
interest rates while staying within its risk management limits.

Other price risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due fo changes in market prices, other than changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

7. Continuous operation ability
Although as of December 31, 2024, the Company's accumulated losses amounted to VND
(149,466,454,779), representing 40.02% of shareholders' equity. Additionally, significant
provisions have been made for short-term trade receivables, other short-term receivables, long-term
receivables, inventories, and long-term financial investments due to impairment. These conditions
indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

\D\.=8%2 /8

However, during 2024, the Company actively implemented solutions to advance projects aimed at
addressing its financial difficulties. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no overdue debts
that it was unable to settle, and the ratio of Liabilities to Total Assets was 10.91%.

Rased on these factars, the Company's General Director believes that the aforementioned issues do
not affect the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

8.  Comparative figures
Comparative figures refer to the financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023,
which have been audited by Nhan Tam Viet Auditing Company Limited.

Prepared on March 29, 2025

Prepared by Chief Accountant
&"/' % / \
Le Thi Huong Le Thi Huong Yu Xuan Han
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